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VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: . . .(gavel). . . Land Use Committee meeting for Wednesday, July 15, 2009,
is now in session. For the record, we have in attendance Councilmembers Jo Anne Johnson,
Sol Kaho'ohalahala, Bill Medeiros, Wayne Nishiki, Joe Pontanilla, and Committee Vice-Chair
Mike Molina; and for the record, today, we have three excusals--Council Chair Danny Mateo,
Committee Chair Gladys Baisa, and Committee Member Mike Victorino. And I will be
facilitating this afternoon's events, Members. And we have two items on our agenda today,
which is Land Use Item 27 and Land Use Item 20. But before we get to those items, the Chair
would also like to recognize other personnel in attendance. We have our Committee Analyst
Carla Nakata, and Committee Secretary Pauline Martins. And from the Corporation Counsel's
office, we have James Giroux; and from the Planning Department, we have Director Jeff Hunt,
and Planner Simone Bosco. Thank you all for being here today, and the Chair certainly
appreciates your promptness, Members. So before we deal with our two matters, the Chair will
give the public the opportunity to testify on either of our two agenda items. And before we call
up our first testifiers the Chair would like to go over a few ground rules with the members of
the public who choose to testify. You'll be given three minutes to testify with one minute to
conclude. Please state your full name and any organization that you may be representing, and
please turn off all cell phones and pagers so as not to disrupt our proceedings today. So with
that being said, we will begin public testimony. First to testify, we have Ann Bergman, and
she'll be followed by Joshua Schneider. And both of these individuals will be testifying on
Land Use Item 20.

. . . BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY...
MS. BERGMAN: Good afternoon. Up, is that better?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah.
MS. BERGMAN: Thank you. Hello my name is Ann Bergman, and I am the Principal at Emmanuel
Lutheran School. Thank you for allowing us to come before you this afternoon. I just
completed my second year as Principal of Emmanuel Lutheran School and my 33 rd year as a
Lutheran school teacher and administrator. Emmanuel Lutheran School this last year, had 175
students. We have been at almost full capacity for the last two years and have had to turn
students away for lack of space in some of our classrooms. This last year we had over
20 students that we had to turn away primarily in our kindergarten and in our middle school.
There just is no room for them. Emmanuel has grown steadily over the years. Our preschool
stays at between 36 and 38 students each year. That is a full capacity of the space that we have.
Our elementary school averaged 129 students in kindergarten through sixth grade for the years
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that we offered those grades. And we have averaged 164 students since we have added our
middle school, seventh and eighth grade. This last year we had 175 students. We are looking
to build new facility, because we are out of space. When we get our new school built we will
be able to double the size of our preschool. And we will have room in our elementary and
middle school program to almost double our current enrollment. On top of that we will have
room to do things that will add to the quality of the program that we are able to present. We
will have, be able to have a science room, an art room, a music room, a school library, and a
gym. Right now we have to make do in the classrooms that we have, and our teachers have
been phenomenal at getting their classroom libraries, at sharing space so that the band can
come in while the teacher takes their class to another classroom. With our new building we'll
be able to have that space that we need. Our playground is full when the children come out.
Our new property will obviously have enough land for the children to get out and really play,
without having to worry about if the P.E. class needs to be out at the same time. We feel that
we fulfill a very important need in our community by providing quality Christian education for
those families that are looking for it. We ask, please help us to enlarge this ministry that we
have and to serve more families in our community. Thank you very much.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Bergman. Before I turn matters over to the
Committee for any questions that they may have for you, I'd ask if you, you're available to
remain later on, when we do get to the item for discussion and if the Members have additional
questions about the school, if you'd be willing.
MS. BERGMAN: Absolutely.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you. Committee Members, any questions, or a need to clarify the
testimony from Ms. Bergman? Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Ms. Berganan [sic], Bergman for
being here. You know I've been to your school, doing eye testing to those pre,
pre-children [sic] age. How many of those students do you have presently at that age--the
preschoolers?
MS. BERGMAN: Preschool, we have 36 to 38 very consistently.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: 36 to 38.
MS. BERGMAN: . And they are four years old and five year old.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. And, and, they support working families in
regards to, I, I, I guess, you know, a place to drop off their children for learning and...
MS. BERGMAN: Yes, we run care after the school hours (licensed childcare) so that the children can
be dropped off at seven in the morning. And for preschool, five o'clock is when they close; and
in our elementary and middle school, it's five thirty.
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Committee Members, any other questions
for Ms. Bergman? Mr. Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Ms. Bergman, thank you for being here.
What grades does the school go till?
MS. BERGMAN: Right now, we have four year olds through eighth grade.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay so preschool through eighth grade?
MS. BERGMAN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And you did give us a breakdown, you said you had about
164 middle school students?
MS. BERGMAN: No. In kindergarten through middle school, our average has been 164.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay so kindergarten through middle school.
MS. BERGMAN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, and, and, okay and then preschool, you, you, just
mentioned 36 to 38.
MS. BERGMAN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And so your total enrollment is about 175 students?
MS. BERGMAN: No. That it would be our enrollment this last year in K through eighth.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Just K through eighth.
MS. BERGMAN: We have about 210.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: About 210 total enrollment?
MS. BERGMAN: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Including preschool?
MS. BERGMAN: Yes.
4

LAND USE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui

July 15, 2009

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And just so that I'm correct in your location, you're in the
Waikapu area, on the, are you on the makai side of the road, the ocean side?
MS. BERGMAN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MS. BERGMAN: That's where we want to build, correct?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Well that's where, yeah.
MS. BERGMAN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: That's where your property is.
MS. BERGMAN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
MS. BERGMAN: On Waiale Road.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. And the existing school is there?
MS. BERGMAN: No. Our current school is where our church is located on Papa Street and One
Street -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, okay.
MS. BERGMAN: --tucked in there on a very small piece of property -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MS. BERGMAN: --for the number of children we have.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So if you get approval to build on this property in Waikapu,
would you then move the entire school to this property from Papa Avenue?
MS. BERGMAN: That is our desire, lord willing.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see, okay, all right. Thank you, Ms. Bergman.
MS. BERGMAN: You're welcome.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Medeiros. Committee Members, any other questions?
Seeing none, thank you very much for your testimony, Ms. Bergman.
MS. BERGMAN: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Next to testify on Land Use Item 20 is Pastor Joshua Schneider and he'll be
followed by Darby Gill.
MR. SCHNEIDER: Yes, my name is Joshua Schneider. I'm the Associate Pastor at Emmanuel
Lutheran Church and I arrived there about three years ago and served the first two years as a
teacher in the grade school. So I actually taught in the junior high to the sixth, seventh, and
eighth graders, teaching science and religion classes and continued to serve as the, the pastor
now, since Pastor Milton Fricke retired after serving over 40 years. You may have seen in The
Maui News that he and his wife both retired from serving here in the congregation for over 40
years in the community. And I just wanted to give you, just a, a small thumbnail sketch of kind
of the history of the congregation and the school. It was founded in 1967. That was the
church. And he arrived a year later with his wife, to start, to grow that church from the late
'60s. In 1971, they built the church building; and then the following year in '72, they opened a
preschool facility in the church which is, to this day, been used as a multipurpose space.
During the weeks, it serves as a preschool space; and then on Sunday, we convert that into a
worship space. And then they began a grade school in 1978, that they operated out of rented
facilities, I believe at Kahului Union Church, in some of their classrooms, until they were able
to build the permanent school building that's there today in 1985. And so the congregation has
operated its church and preschool in the community for several decades and has had a good
reputation among the community. And a, as Ann mentioned, we're hoping to expand our
operations and be able to serve more families with the quality Christian education that we offer
there and hopefully be able to increase our enrollment and also the play space and activity
space on the new church property that we've purchased. And also in a, in a, maybe in a future
phase of building we'd hope to build a new church facility on the, new property on Waiale
Road that would be esthetically pleasing. It would fit nicely into the landscape there. So, thank
you for your consideration of our request.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, thank you, Mr. Schneider. Committee Members, questions for the
testifier or the need to clarify testimony? Seeing none, thank you for your testimony, sir. Next
to testify, we have Darby Gill, and he'll be testifying on Land Use Item 27; and he'll be
followed by Jim Sanders, who will also be testifying on Land Use Item 27. Good afternoon.
MR. GILL: Thank you for the opportunity to come and speak on behalf of Don and Joy Nelson's
application of hold events at their property in Maalaea. My name is Darby Gill, I'm the
Executive Director of A Keiki's Dream program which gives dreams to children who face a
crisis and who live full time in Maui County. Our program seeks to support the neediest
children who live here with hope and encouragement at a critical time in their life by giving
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them the message that they are worthy to have good things happen to them and that they can
dare to dream. We've, we've completed over 1,000 dreams in the last 16 years on Maui. And
none of that would be possible without support from our, all of our supporters. We, we depend
almost entirely on private philanthropy for our funding which is why we never come to you
guys asking for money. We're out there because we have the support of small businesses, the
visitor industry, and individuals like Don and Joy Nelson. They've been involved with our
program since 2004, and we have our annual fundraising event that they donate unique and
auction packages to our program that have generated over $70,000 since that time. That
number, $70,000 represents a 100 dreams of children in crisis for Maui County, kids in the
shelters, kids with major medical issues, kids who live in totally dysfunctional worlds that are
completely under your radar. And that's possible because of their generous support. It also
represents the 100 dreams that we did last year in Maui County, the highest we've ever done in
a single year. Imagine one sponsor, who provided all the service program money for one year,
for a local nonprofit. That's pretty amazing. But they help in other ways as well. If we have a
dream that's related to professional sports, we can call on Coach Nelson to help us out. Last
year, along with realtor, Jim Sanders, they offered a scholarship to a, a boy who has a long,
long history of homelessness to go to college. More recently, they helped to pay for an
11-year-old girl from Happy Valley whose life has been in complete turmoil the seven years
I've known her because of her parents substance abuse issues, and who has lost parental rights
recently. And rather than have her end up in the child welfare system, they paid for her aunty,
who she calls mom, to legally adopt her. Now for the first time in her life, she has a chance to
be a normal, healthy child. They also help us to leverage money from other funders to make
dreams come true. They are kindhearted individuals who are part of our community, and who
quietly say "we are here, what can we do to help". Please extend the same aloha, kindness, and
consideration to the Nelsons, while they go through this process, that they have shown the
Dream Children, and their families in crisis. We are, we are, honored to serve. Thank you very
much for the opportunity to speak.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you for your testimony, Mr. Gill. Committee Members, questions, or
is there need to clarify testimony? Mr. Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Thank you, Mr. Gill, is that correct?
Yeah, thank you for your presence, and your testimony. Is your organization, or, in this area of
Maalaea? Or are you located somewhere else?
MR. GILL: We're located at the Cameron Center in Wailuku.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: In Cameron Center in Wailuku. Okay, but you receive support,
financial support from the applicant here?
MR. GILL: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, thank you for that clarification. Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
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VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Medeiros. Any other questions, Members? Seeing none,
thank you for your testimony, Mr. Gill.
MR. GILL: Thank you very much.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Next to testify on Land Use Item 27, is Jim Sanders, to be followed by
George Rixey, who will also be testifying on Land Use Item 27.
MR. SANDERS: Good afternoon, and thank you for the opportunity to be here. I'm in support of the
Nelsons' request for use of the Maalaea property. I own property in Maalaea, and I have a
number of other business interests there, principally financing. And we put a lot of our clients,
who come here to purchase property, and for activities and a lot of them favor the Maalaea area
and the condos that surround both sides of this property. And I've never had a complaint at all,
and regarding any issues from this property. So I have a 100 percent support for them. Being a
neighbor in the area, and also from the, just supporting the Nelsons in the kind of support that
they do offer the community as well. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you for your testimony, Mr. Sanders. Committee Members,
questions? Member Kaho'ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. Thank you, Mr. Sanders. Just to clarify, you are
neighboring their property? You're next door to their property?
MR. SANDERS: Not right next door, but I do have several clients right now staying right next to
them -COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
MR. SANDERS: --in the Banyans.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, but your property is located where?
MR. SANDERS: Island Sands, which is a couple of properties up.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
MR. SANDERS: Just down the beach.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, thank you.
MR. SANDERS: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Kaho'ohalahala. Committee Members, any other questions
for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you for your testimony, sir. Next to testify on Land Use
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Item 27 will be George Rixey, followed by John Biviano who will be testifying, testifying on
Land Use Item 27 as well.
MR. RIXEY: Aloha, my name's George Rixey and I'm an architect and I live in Kihei. And, the
reason why I know the Nelsons. I'm here in support of the Nelsons' request for a wedding
service in Maalaea. And the reason why, one reason I know them is 'cause I worked on the
building that we're talking about, as a renovation project for them. And, so I've also worked on
a number of other projects with them. So over the years, we've become good friends. So I'm
well acquainted with how they view being, residents of Maui. They're very considerate and
conscientious of Maui. I know that they do a lot of support for our community. So just to list
you a few things that they are support as well as Keiki Dream, is Relay for Life, Habitat for
Humanity, Kihei Canoe Club, for scholarships for kids. Projects that brought forward by
citizens in the community like Kimokeo Kapahulehua, Kalama Park Skate Park, Hawaiian
Outrigger Voyaging Society, the Maui Arts and Cultural Center, and Kihei Lutheran Church.
And I know that they have the facility open. They donate the, the facility at Maalaea to a
number of organizations for nonprofit use. We used to run our fundraisers from the Kihei
Community Association there. They have, Sustainable Biodiesel Alliance uses it. They've had
it for the Democratic Party and other nonprofit groups. In addition to that, they do a lot of
other stuff throughout the island that's not related to Maalaea, but some of the things they've
done, is they've donated a small hale, a small dwelling to the Teens On Call, and they've been
involved with dune restoration and koa forest, reforestation on Maui. So, you know, I know the
Nelsons consider themselves to be residents of Maui, and even though Mr. Nelson's profession
requires that he work on the mainland and abroad, but he does earn a significant amount of
money. And he's a very good example of someone who brings mainland money to Maui and
invests in their community here in Maui. And a very good example of that would be a lot of
the projects that he's been involved with in Paia as far as renovation and restoration, and new
buildings in Paia to help revitalize Paia Town. So, I'm just here to ask, you to support him, as
he supports us. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: All right thank you, Mr. Rixey. Committee Members, questions or
clarifications with regards to the testimony? Seeing none, thank you, Mr. Rixey.
MR. RIXEY: Mahalo.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Next to testify on Land Use Item 27, will be John Biviano and followed by
Colleen Lochlin [sic], and forgive me if I mispronounced your name. We'll cross that bridge
when we get to it. Proceed.
MR. BIVIANO: Hello, my name is John Biviano, aloha. I appreciate you listening to us today. I'm
here to testify on behalf of Mr. Nelson. I represent Superior Landscape Maintenance and I've
provided the maintenance on that property in Maalaea for the past four or five years. And, I'm
here to tell you that meeting Mr. Nelson out there and the property manager, that their priorities
were to keep the property in a beautiful, pristine condition. Paying close attention to water
usage; and keeping it just neat and clean; and being very responsible with our neighbors;
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literally going next door and meeting the property managers, and asking them if there's any
situations that arises that they need us to pay attention to. And it has arisen, and we've taken
care of all those problems that do arise. Being a good neighbor, and I'd just like you to
strongly consider, that the wedding services be allowed, the property's just absolutely beautiful.
And everybody does a great job in keeping it that way. I appreciate your time.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you for your testimony, Mr. Biviano. Committee Members,
questions or clarifications? Seeing none, thank you for testimony, sir. Next to testify on Land
Use Item 27, Colleen Lochlin [sic]; and again, forgive my pronunciation. And she is the last
person to have signed up for public testimony. If there are any other individuals in the gallery
that would like to sign up, now is your time to do so. Proceed.
MS. COCHLIN: Thank you for your time. I'm a property owner in Maalaea, and most of the
condominiums there are vacation rentals, and people, visitors, love Maalaea, because you can
walk, you have sidewalks, you have the harbor. So I'm in favor of the business being able to
continue as a wedding business, which I believe was the intent. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Excuse me. Before you go, could you state your full name for the
record?
MS. COCHLIN: Oh, it's Colleen Cochlin.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Cochlin, okay. Sorry. Committee Members, questions or clarification?
Seeing none, thank you very much for your testimony.
MS. COCHLIN: Thank you.
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .

VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Committee Secretary, have we had any additional signups for either one of
our items?
MS. MARTINS: No.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Seeing no one approaching, if there are no objections, Members, the
Chair will close public testimony for both Land Use Items 20 and 27.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. So ordered by the Committee.
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LU-27

CONDITIONAL PERMIT FOR A WEDDING SERVICES AND GROUP
FUNCTIONS BUSINESS (MAALAEA) (C.C. No. 08-39)

VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Members, we'll start off first with Land Use Item 27, which is the, which
relates to the conditional permit request for wedding services and group functions business in
Maalaea. Via County Communication No. 08-39, the Planning Director transmitted documents,
relating to a request from Don Nelson for a one year conditional permit to operate a wedding
services and group functions business on approximately 36,691 square feet at 210 Hauoli
Street, and to provide associated parking on approximately 10,800 square feet at 220 or 220
Hauoli Street within the A-2 Apartment District in Maalaea. Members, at this point, the Chair
will call for a brief recess. The applicant would like to provide a, a brief presentation on the
subject matter. So, Members, we will prepare the Chambers for the presentation; and upon the
completion of the presentation, we'll reconvene. And then we will have the Planning
Department give their comments on the matter; and from that point on, we will open the floor
for questions. So with that being said, the Chair will call for a brief recess. We shall reconvene
in five minutes, Members. . .(gavel).

RECESS:

1:56 p.m.

RECONVENE: 2:00 p.m.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: . . .(gavel). . . Land Use Committee meeting for July 15, 2009 is now back
in session. Members, we have from the firm of Munekiyo & Hirago, we have Mich Hirano,
who will be doing a presentation on Land Use Item 27. Mr. Hirano?

. . .BEGIN PRESENTATION.. .
MR. HIRANO: Thank you very much, Vice-Chair Molina, and good afternoon, Council Committee
Members. We have prepared a PowerPoint presentation for the wedding services conditional
permit application. And I will start with just giving some background of the property. The
landowner is Nellie's on Maui, Ltd. It is owned by the Nelson Family Trust. The permit
holder for the application is Lee or Geralee McBride. She is a beneficiary of the family trust
and is the daughter, of John [sic] , of Don and Joy Nelson. There are two properties on this
application, the property address is 210 and 220 Hauoli Street in Maalaea. The total property
size is approximately 1.8 acres. The underlined zoning of the property is A-2 Apartment. And
the community plan designation for the property is Multi-Family. This is a regional location
map of the Maalaea area, and this Hauoli Street. This is Honoapiilani Highway, and Maalaea
Harbor, and Hauoli Street runs along the north, sort of northeast, west access. And then there
are properties makai of Hauoli Street. This is agricultural land on the mauka side of Hauoli
Street, and I'd like to just point out that most of the properties on Hauoli Street from the
Maalaea Triangle, are condominiums, Multi-Family Resort properties that are also used for a
mix of residential and short-term rentals. The Nelson property is located approximately in this
area. And to the west, and to the east of the property, are Multi-Family Resort residences. The
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Island Sands is at this point. Just next to there is a Maui Banyan, or Maalaea Banyan, on this
side of the property, and then the next property over is Island Sands, and the property to the, I
guess the northeast of the property is the Na, Naale, Alu, Kanai A Nalu Condominiums. Going
the wrong way. This is the residence where the wedding functions are held. It's a single-story
wedding, single-story, Single-Family residence. It's approximately 1,368 square feet. The
wedding functions, it's a two bedroom, two bath, Single-Family residence, and the wedding
functions are mainly held outdoors in this area. Another, another shot of the residence; and as
you can see, there is a grass area. And the, during wedding functions, the doors open, and the
wedding ceremony is usually done in the afternoon, around 4:00 p.m. in this area. After the
wedding services, the ceremony is complete, activities move back indoors for refreshments.
Dinner is then served outside, usually these tables are set up in this area. And then in the, after
the ceremonies, there is a reception area, and it moves back indoors. There's sometimes music
and dancing. And that happens indoors. As part of the conditional permit, there are as well
conditions on the, on the hours of the, of the functions. So most of the, the music, is restricted,
the music is restricted to acoustical music, when it's occurring outside. And when the music is
indoors, it's amplified; but the doors are closed, and no music is allowed to be held, amplified
music is to be held outdoors. This is just the site plan of the property, and as you can see there
are two properties . . . (inaudible) . . . . Total area is approximately 1.8 acres. There's a
driveway into the property, a circular drive turnaround. And this is where the guest parking is
occur, occurs. The conditional permit stipulates, or the proposed conditional permit stipulates a
maximum of 20 cars will be able to park within the property. This is where the wedding
functions take place. There is a private small cottage, that there is a permanent caretaker,
property caretaker onsite, all the time. And when there is no function on the property in the
main dwelling, it's vacant. This area is grassed, and there's quite a bit of screening on both
sides of the property to screen from the adjacent properties and the residences. There is a fairly
thick Naupaka hedge, along this, the waterfront portion of the property and weddings are not
allowed to be held in the waterfront area. They're mainly, all wedding functions are to be held
on the property itself, on the grass area. This is a photograph taken of the Maalaea Banyans to
the west of the property; and as you can see, it's approximately 150 feet from the existing
dwelling, and it's heavily screened and buffered by vegetation. This is an area photo of the
property. This is Hauoli Street. This is the subject property--the two parcels. . . .(Change
Tape, Start 1B at 2:07 p.m.). . . The residence is in this particular location, where the weddings
take place. And as you can see, the area and the property is heavily vegetated. Quite a distance
between this property and the adjacent Maalaea Banyans property, and the Kanai A Nalu MultiFamily residences, it's about 200 feet distance from that neighboring property. The, briefly, just
the reasons to justify the request, the application will support the wedding industry on Maui.
With a rare beachfront property, that is in a very desirable location. The property is adequately
buffered from the surrounding land uses. Use of this property will allow it to maintain an open
space in the neighborhood. This is the only property along Hauoli Street that is not developed
with a Multi-Family residential property, or with residential dwellings. So it provides an open
space area for that street. It's an undeveloped, under developed parcel in an area of high
density Multi-Family Resort residential properties. And it maintains the low density use of the
property. So thank you very much. The permit holder, Geralee McBride, and myself will be
available to answer any questions that the Committee may have. So thank you.
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. . .END OF PRESENTATION . .

VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you very much, Mr. Hirano. Members, we're gonna take a
brief recess to put the screen back up and then we will reopen again with the Planning
Department giving us an overview. Meeting in recess. . . . (gavel).. .
RECESS:

2:08 p.m.

RECONVENE: 2:10 p.m.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: . .(gavel). . Thank you very much, Mr. Hirano, for that excellent
presentation. Now, I'd now like to turn matters over to the Planning Department to give us a
brief overview of the subject matter. Mr. Director?
MR. HUNT: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I, I thought I'd clarify a few things. It's an unusual application;
and hopefully, by clarifying it, it'll help you folks understand it. The, originally, there was two
conditional permit applications. One was for a transient vacation rental (a TVR) and then the
other one was for the wedding business. And it was decided to separate the two applications.
Or maybe I should say divorce the two. So that the, they would simplify things and they
wouldn't be caught up with each other. Some of the comments that we've received throughout
the whole processing, sometimes it's hard to determine if it's regarding one, or the other, or
both. So if that comes up, that might help you understand why there's a little confusion there.
The, the TVR application's been reviewed by the Planning Commission. It's up at the Land
Use Committee, but that's not before you today. Today is the other one, so it's just the wedding
business. That's all we're talking about today. And the, the wedding business, the Department
staff report back in 2005, we, we recommended approval. Based on some concerns, letters of
concerns from the neighbors, we added some conditions of approval. But we're comfortable
that with those conditions of approval, the business could be recommended for approval. The
Planning Commission, at their hearing, they wrestled with it, and they couldn't come up with
five votes for, for a recommendation. I believe the vote was four-four and there was several.
There may have been more than one attempt at a, at a vote. So officially, the recommendation
from the Planning Commission is, there is none. So before you, you have the Department
recommendation of approval, the Planning Commission. No recommendation at all, one way
or the other. They, they couldn't come to a majority vote. And with that, I'll turn it over to
Simone Bosco, the Staff Planner, to give a little more detail and, and if there's any specific
questions, but I just wanted to give some background to help clarify things.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Director. Ms. Bosco?
MS. BOSCO: Good afternoon, Members. My name is Simone Bosco. I shepherded this application
through the process, and I would like to bring your attention to the July 15, 2009
communication to you. This communication came as a result of discussions before the
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Planning Commission in 2005. We discussed the various aspects of the project. We also heard
testimony from the public, and we also had received a number of letters of testimony. In the
discussion, the Commission debated some of the potential impacts from the proposed use, and
we were tossing around about four additional conditions that were recommended by the
Department, and this is when the conversation got held up at the Commission. They could not
agree on some of the specifics. However, they did come to some agreement on some of the
proposals. And so what I've done is referenced, referenced in my memo dated, or my letter
dated July 15 th , proposed new conditions 10, 11, 12, and 13. Those are in addition to the draft
ordinance language and condition or proposed condition two, eight, and nine, include
amendments to the draft ordinance. So I would ask that the Members consider this language
when reviewing the final language for the draft ordinance. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Ms. Bosco. Before I turn matters over to the Committee, just
for my information, I guess the public as well, with regards to what happened at the Planning
Commission, there was a four-four deadlock. Have some of the issues that were of concern to
the Commission have now been addressed by the applicant? Can you state for the record if that
has happened?
MS. BOSCO: Yes. Thank you, Chair. Yes. To my understanding, the issues have been resolved. We
also have worked with the community to try and resolve those issues. And I, I would like to
defer to the applicant on, if, if the Members have any further questions with regards to the
property and how it's being, how it will be operated, and how the history of the project evolved.
But at this point, we, we understand that the issues are resolved.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, thank you. Later, at a later point, we'll bring the applicant up to
verify. My understanding is they did meet with the Community Association in the area to work
out the issues. Thank you. All right, Members. At this point, the Chair will give the first
opportunity for questions of the Department to Mr. Nishiki, as the area representative.
Mr. Nishiki, questions for the Department?
COUNCILMEMBER NISH1KI: Where are the minutes of the Planning Commission?
MS. BOSCO: We...
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Committee Staff, have we been provided the minutes of that particular
meeting at the Planning Commission level? Ms. Nakata?
MS. NAKATA: The minutes are attached to the back of the County Communication.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Mr. Nishiki, the minutes. Is that the January 11, 2005 minutes? I
believe.
MS. NAKATA: Yes, Mr. Chair.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: January 1 1 th ?
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: 2005, yes. For the record, Department, how long has the applicant been,
had this matter before the Commission, or the Department?
MS. BOSCO: Since 2002.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Since 2002, and here we are in 2009, so roughly seven years, they have
been, I guess waiting, or in limbo? Mr. Nishiki, the minutes?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: (NOTE: His Executive Assistant, Mr. Yamaguchi, handed him the
minutes.) That's all right.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I, I, I got it. . . . (chuckled) . My, someone else had it for me. The
concerns raised by Planning Commission, what were they?
MS. BOSCO: The concerns revolved around noise impacts, the number of events that would be
held--let's see--traffic, parking, and I believe that's it. Oh, and, perhaps, the installation of
backflow preventers for landscaping.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. I read with concern two letters. One, a July 23, 2003, from
the Department of, for the Water Supply, which states that the parcel currently uses an average
of 4,755 gallons per day, which is about 79 percent higher than the average water use for
commercial establishments in the Maalaea area. Comments?
MS. BOSCO: Thank you. My understanding is that arose because of a certain infestation of a certain
kind of a, I think it's called a chinch bug. At that time, the applicants, to my understanding,
needed to address the infestation problem. And so the high water usage, the high water usage
was related to the re-landscaping of the entire property, which, as you know, is quite
landscaped; and therefore, the water usage increased dramatically during that period. Since
then, the landscaping has been completed. It's being maintained, and to my understanding, the
applicant has been trying to implement water conservation measures to keep the water usage
lower. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Then the letter from the State of Hawaii, Department of Health,
March 11, 2004. Second paragraph, "the subject property is located in the Critical Wastewater
Disposal Area (CWDA) as determined by the Maui County Wastewater Advisory Committee
where no new cesspools will be allowed. Wastewater treatment and disposal have not been
addressed in the submittal. Our records show that a treatment individual wastewater serving a
five-bedroom dwelling was installed on parcel. However, as we do not have any further
information of this facility or property, we cannot adequately comment on wastewater treatment
and disposal from the proposed project. All wastewater plans must conform to the applicable
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provisions of the Department of Health's Administrative Rules 11-62. We do reserve the right
to review the detailed wastewater plans for conformance to applical, applicable rules."
MS. BOSCO: May I ask which agency that came from?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Department of Health.
MS. BOSCO: Okay, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Environmental Planning Office.
MS. BOSCO: Thank you. Is there a question?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yes. How is the wastewater going to be addressed?
MS. BOSCO: Thank you. Since the receipt of the letter, the applicant had addressed comments from
the Department of Health, by submitting the plans for the individual wastewater system that is
currently installed on the property. This is a septic system. It's been approved. It is in
compliance, and following the addressing of that comment, by the applicant, there were no
further comments from the Department of Health.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And what is the capacity of this septic tank?
MS. BOSCO: I believe it's designed to, to accommodate 1,000 gallons per day, or 1,000--I think. I,
I'd like the applicant to clarify that just so that I am not wrong, but I believe it's 1,000 gallons
per day.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Nishiki, would you like the applicant to verify the comments from the
Department?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I'll, I'll continue with Administration, and then we can call 'em up
later.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: The, the, area which calls for 1,000 gallons per day, what is the, with
the amount of people attending a function, 80 people?
MS. BOSCO: Maximum 80 people.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: What does that project as far as water use?
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MS. BOSCO: My understanding of this kind of system is it's designed to handle establishments or
structures that have beyond 20 people. And I'd have to look into my file to see what the
maximum load is. I'm not clear. Perhaps, the applicant can address that.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. I'll just save the questions until we deal with the applicant.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. All right. Thank you, Mr. Nishiki. Committee Members, any other
questions for the Administration before I call up the applicant to respond to the questions from
Mr. Nishiki and any questions the rest of you may have? Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, and this will be either Mr. Hunt or Ms. Bosco. With regard to
activities that were continuing on the property, I, I have knowledge of this because I received a
number of complaints in my office, with regard to ongoing wedding activities and continuous, I
guess, type of parties or operations going on in this property. I just want to know from the
Department's perspective, and if you can answer this, fine, 'cause I know some of it predates
some of your involvement. What is the general position? When somebody applies for a
conditional use permit, I always was under the impression that they are to cease and desist any
existing activity until the permit is granted. Is that, am I correct?
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Director?
MR. HUNT: The question's regarding a conditional permit?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Well, the ongoing activities--because I have independent
verification of what was going on in the property--so when they're applying for a conditional
use permit to conduct wedding activities, but those activities are still continuing on while the
application is in process. What is the general way that you deal with that?
MR. HUNT: The, the current Administration requires that for a conditional permit, that no activities
are ongoing until the permit is issued. The, and that's somewhat open to policy. The previous
Administration allowed that someone to apply for a conditional permit and continue the
un-permitted use, the illegal use. The Chair referred to the fact that this application had been
here since 2002. Part of that is because the previous Administration allowed a conditional
permit application to be submitted, and the use to continue, until the application was acted on,
and then they had a policy that they weren't acting on the application. So you had a perpetual,
you could just continue illegally, indefinitely. And the new Administration came in, and we
said "that's not a good policy". So we, we changed that policy, and we said, "no". If you don't
have a permit for a conditional permit, if you don't have the approval, you can't operate. The
reason being is that conditional permits do take years. In this case, it's unusual; and because of
that non-processing of the application, it's been, you know, six years, I guess, eight years. But
the, the, the issue of enforcement, while an application is pending, is, is a, there's a spectrum.
So let me give you a simple scenario. Somebody has an illegal building. If it can be resolved
with a building permit, we generally say "well apply for your building permit". It usually takes
a, a few months, and then that resolves it. And so we don't tell someone to tear down the
-17-

LAND USE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui

July 15, 2009

building, and then apply, for example. So it's, it's a spectrum. It's a scale. The answer to your
question on conditional permits--because they take so long and because they're
discretionary--we, we don't know that a conditional permit will be approved. We tell people,
"no you have to cease all operations until you actually get the permit".
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And, and you verified then that since that policy was implemented,
no activities have taken place on that property?
MR. HUNT: I'll defer to Simon on that.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MS. BOSCO: Thank you, Council Member. My understating is, for this particular property--and for
other similar types of properties that have similar problems--if there is a complaint, typically
we, we tend to allow a grace period for cessation of operations if there have been scheduled
events. In this case in particular, there were events that were scheduled; and if, if you can
imagine a wedding event is, is quite a lot of planning. So in this case, the Department did grant
a certain grace period to the end of 2007 for all events to be conducted and then cease, and then
that was done at the end of 2007.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So there have been no activities that were not permitted since 2007
to the current date?
MS. BOSCO: My understanding is that the, there has been no evidence able to be obtained for that,
for that occurring. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: That's a very safe answer to give. I, I guess, you know, my
concern is that because even though you may not have received the calls, I received the calls;
and some people don't want to use their names. They don't want to, I guess, have any kind of
issue with regard to actually putting their name on a complaint. So that's, you know, where I
get caught in the middle. The, the other question I have is in regard to structures. And I think
that somewhere in the documentation, I read that there was a structure that was included within
the application but it had been torn down. So, can you address that issue? Were all the permits
obtained to actually demolish that particular structure?
MS. BOSCO: Thank you. I, my understanding is "yes, it was demolished". I would have to do
research to see what permits were obtained for its demolition, but it's no longer there. There's
nothing on parcel eight at this point. No structure is on parcel eight.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. If you could do that, I, I would very much appreciate that
`cause it, it speaks to compliance, or at least the intent to comply. The other thing that I noted,
and this is in a letter I believe from the State of Hawaii, Department of Health. And this, I
believe, Member Nishiki referred to this, it's March 11, 2004. It says, "Wastewater Branch.
We've reviewed the subject document, which requests an early consultation for the preparation
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of an EA, for a 16-lot subdivision and related improvements." Could you speak to that? I have
heard no mention of that.
MS. BOSCO: Yes. Thank you for bringing that up. When you read that letter, when anybody would
read that letter, they would say, they would immediately think that there's another application
in process because this particular application, this particular request, has nothing to do with the
16-lot subdivision. So, I did not verify that, specifically, with the Department of Health at the
time. However, if you go on to read the rest of letter, it makes reference to the existing, what's
existing on the property at this point. The response by the applicant addresses their concern for
the existing structures. So, following the response to the Department of Health, we heard no
further issues raised by that agency; and that, and that is, to me, the more salient point, that the
applicant had addressed their concerns.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And, and, you know, just, just to get it on the record, I think
that even though this application has taken a long while, it has morphed from what was a joint
application or a TVR combined with the other one. There's a little bit of confusion about what
were they really applying for? So with all due respect to the length of time that this has taken,
there, there were several issues involved, and it was a complicated. It, it seems to me, it was
complicated, so I don't fault you. And I certainly don't fault the Council for taking their time.
And I certainly don't fault the Planning Commission for asking the questions because this was
not something, and particularly with the activities, precipitating a lot of complaints, and I read
the letters to the editor when they would come in the paper. So, my, my final concern is with
regard to problems that I have had complaints ad nauseam about Haycraft Park and the
activities going on, and that was one of the things that was addressed that was really important;
and I don't really see, I, I guess, that issue specifically. Even though it's unrelated to this
application, sometimes if there's spillover, or people see activities going on in the area; and
they think, well if it's okay for them to do that, then we're just going to party hardy in Haycraft,
and that's where we've gotten tremendous numbers of complaints. So I, I, would like to see
something that at least in this application, or at least in the mitigation, that addresses that issue.
Thank you.
MS. BOSCO: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Johnson. Committee Members, any other questions
for the Administration before I call up the applicant up? Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. This is in regards to Condition 2. Is it the
Department, Department's request to go from one year to two years?
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Ms. Bosco?
MS. BOSCO: Yes, it is.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: And the reason?
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MS. BOSCO: Because we feel as if a one-year timeframe, first of all--how do I say this?
MR. HUNT: I, I can say it.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
MR. HUNT: One year, by the time one year's up, they're, they're supposed to reapply for the
extension within a certain period of time. It goes to the Planning Department; goes to the
Planning Commission; it comes back to you. They would almost, almost have to apply, you
know, tomorrow for their extension for one year. We've all got a lot of work to do. And we
understand the idea that you give someone a trial period, but we think two years is a reasonable
trial period, given everybody's workload.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: And the compliance in regards to Condition No. 8, one year,
backflow prevention devices? Why not sooner?
MS. BOSCO: Pardon me. What was the question?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: The backflow prevention devices--according to this here--the
Departments, approved by the Department, and should be in within one year of the effective
date of this ordinance. Why not sooner?
MS. BOSCO: We feel that within the next six months, the applicant can obtain calculations and after
that six-month period is up, we're allowing another six months for the Department of Water
Supply to approve those particular calculations, and then the backflow preventers. I don't
expect that to be a problem to install quite soon, if not immediately. It's submittal of the
calculations that becomes a much more technical exercise.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: I, I'd, like to comment on something else, but this is in regards
to your opening comments, Director, in regards to the other application of the B&B, and how
both will tie in, in regards to the, the number of years as well as the backflow preventer,
prevention device. So I, I know it's two different application. One is now being reviewed by
the Planning Commission and, you know, looking at all of the conditions, if part of this
conditions will address some of, some of the B&B issues that's being reviewed by the Planning
Commission at this time.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Director?
MR. HUNT: Just to clarify, the, the TVR application has been reviewed by the Planning Commission.
It's at the Land Use Committee now. It's ready to be reviewed at the will of the Chair. The
conditions that are addressed in the wedding business are intended to address the wedding
business. We, we separated the two because we wanted to focus on them separately. I think the
conditions that are affecting, or that would affect the wedding business, I think would help to
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alleviate some of the concerns that the neighbors had. In, in my opinion, some of the neighbor
concerns were, well you've got this TVR issue and you've got this wedding business, and the
cumulative effect. Because the applications are separate, they're not tied together. So we need
to be very clear that the conditions--should the wedding business be approved, the conditions
are mitigating any impacts. Should the TVR application come up to this Committee and be
approved, then we would want to take a very good look at that particular application and make
sure that the conditions are applied to that specific operation.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Any other questions for the Administration?
Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. You know this response from the Planner here, about "well, if
we haven't heard from 'em, I guess there's no concern". You know, we just received some
money, Mr. Chairman, or about to receive some money from the Federal government via Mazie
Hirono; and the concern is the reef and the quality of the water in that area just because of the
injection wells that support a lot of the different condos in that area. And it's been shown
through some studies that 80 percent of that coral reef, which was once the most pristine area,
has been damaged. Now, for this Planner to tell us today, that oh "because we haven't heard
from them, I guess it's okay". Sitting here, I think it would be responsible act unless the
Planner gives us some documentation, some written response from the Department of Health.
You are only speculating that they say it's okay. How about a letter to show us that they say it's
okay. I think this is what this panel here, making a decision, would need. Without it, we don't
have that information to say, go ahead.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Ms. Bosco, can you respond to -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Respond.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: -- Mr. Nishiki's request or comments?
MS. BOSCO: Thank you. Member, in my seven years of processing applications, when we do not
hear from an agency after the consultant has addressed a comment or a concern, the standard
practice is that we, we do make the assumption--in most cases, but not all cases--that there are
no further issues. With all do respect to your comment, my, my typical response is to actually
inquire into potential problems or issues that I, I do see coming up with an application. If I
suspect that there's a further problem, I will take that initiative to contact the agency, myself,
and make sure everything is okay. In this particular case, if you would like, if you would like
me to do so--if that's the request of this body--I will do that.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Director, who has a follow-up to Ms. Bosco's response?
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MR. HUNT: Yeah, to elaborate a little bit. I understand your concern, Mr. Nishiki; but perhaps, one
avenue would be to listen to the applicant. We, we haven't heard from them regarding this
particular issue. Perhaps, they can at least, they should be given an opportunity to shed some
light. Maybe they have information that would alleviate your concerns. I don't know. But
rather than focusing on the global issue of how the Department and the planners respond to
agencies, I'd suggest we'd try to focus on this one specific issue; and perhaps, there's
information that would make us all comfortable.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Jeff, that's fine. But I, I, I, it doesn't nullify the fact that the Planning
Department should have these answers before us. I mean what if the planner, if the applicant has
some documentation . . . (Change tape, Start 2A at 2:38 p.m.). . . why would they not have shared
that with the Department? This seven years experience--whatever you wanna call it--you know
what? Seven years ago, people weren't concerned about injection wells and what the impact was
to this beautiful native ocean ecology. People now are more concerned. People expect
government and its departments to give us answers prior to any group like us saying that it's
okay for them to go ahead. If you were in my seat today, with no answers in regards to that,
would you feel like you wanna say that, "go ahead with this", without knowing the impact
perhaps of what the sewage would be? And I say that only because we already know the
degradation in Maalaea Bay, and this parcel happens to be right at an area of Maalaea Bay. So
that's all I have to say, Mr. Chairman.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: All right. Thank you, Mr. Nishiki. I think this is a good time to segway into
asking the applicants--and I mean Ms. McBride and Mr. Hirano--to please come up and share,
share with us any responses you may have to some of the questions that have been asked by the
Committee.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mr. Chairman?
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: If you bring them forth, are we gonna be able to ask the
Administration questions also at the same time?
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: I'll provide an opportunity at a later point as well, Mr. Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: I would like to just give the applicants an opportunity. Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah. I, I, just wanted to make a short comment regarding the,
the treatment plant. I know several years back, the State of Hawaii had indicated to people with
cesspools--especially, you know, in these areas like Maalaea, Kihei, those with a number of
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units--that they should be replacing their cesspools with septic tanks. So I, I don't know if this
is the case of, you know, complying with the State of Hawaii from changing cesspools to septic
tanks. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: All right. Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Good afternoon, Mr. Hirano -MR. HIRANO: Thank you, Chair, Vice-Chair Molina.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: --and Ms. McBride. If you could just start off first by identifying
yourselves; and then, you could start off by responding to the concern Mr. Nishiki has.
MR. HIRANO: Yes. My name is Mich Hirano with Munekiyo & Hiraga.
MS. McBRIDE: Geralee McBride, I'm the applicant.
MR. HIRANO: To respond to Councilmember Nishiki's question, there is an individual wastewater
treatment system on that property. It was designed by Linda Taylor Engineering. It, it uses
aerobic treatment system and there is as well a leach field, so it does not go into a injection well
but a, on a leach field. It is just mauka of the, the house.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Mr. Nishiki, does that satisfy your question?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. Thank you, Mich. And this system was created to deal with a
single-family residence?
MR. HIRANO: Yes. Yes, it has 1,000-gallon capacity.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you. So this is required by a normal single-family residence?
MR. HIRANO: Yes. But there are two washrooms on the property. It's a two bedroom, two bath
residence. There has never been a problem with the septic system or the treatment system. It is
maintained by Valley Isle Pumping. It's serviced six, twice a year; and we responded to that in
our letter, and we provided the as-built drawings for the septic system.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. Mich?
MR. HIRANO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You know, if you were up in Kula and you had this, I wouldn't be so
concerned; but I am really concerned because you're in Maalaea. And you know what a leach
field is?
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MR. HIRANO: Yes, I know.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: A leach field is, if it overflows, then it overflows into this area called
the leach field; but it still goes into the ground. It's not captured in any type of...
MR. HIRANO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And, and, and...
MR. HIRANO: Well the liquids. The solids are, are, kept in the septic for pumping.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Sir, if you let Mr. Nishiki complete his sentence.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. So, this is different. You know? And then, you already said,
you know, this so-called wedding business, Mr. Chairman, if it was getting somebody getting
hitched--put on the ring; aloha; thank you; come to Maui; and then they hele. They're gone.
But in this situation, it's more than that. Now, you're slowing down after the wedding; you're
serving people meals; you're letting them congregate; you're allowing them music, not electric
music, but you're still allowing it. It's like opening up a restaurant there. It's a business. And
is this--where people sit down and then stool and urinate--is this sufficient, Mr. Chairman,
when you've got 80 people here constantly? Not constantly, whatever, but it's still a business
in this most sensitive area. Do you have any letters from the Department of Health, saying
what you are planning to do? And whether that sizing of this unit to deal with the stool and
urine is sufficient?
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Hirano?
MR. HIRANO: I'd like to respond that the premises are used just for the wedding functions. Any
meals that are prepared are prepared off site, and they are brought onto the premises. They're
prepared in a commercial kitchen at the Maalaea Grill. Lee McBride does the catering for the,
for these functions. So the, the use of the, the, the water, the wastewater is primarily geared to
the washroom facilities on site and, as I mentioned, there were two. Normal wedding activities,
and they're limited to, in the conditional permit, they will be limited to 11 functions maximum
per month. Most wedding functions operate about 40 people. So it does not get over used in
terms of the capacity of the septic field; and they're properly maintained.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chairman?
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: This is just the applicant giving us answers to the question. I think
that we need Department of Health here. I think we need to--Mich is saying 40 people; and
here, it talks about 80 people at an event.
MR. HIRANO: There is a maximum of 80.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Well! If I maximize an event, is that 80? Can I bring 79 plus 1?
That's what we're saying, not 40, Mich.
MR. HIRANO: I said on average, it's 40; but there's a maximum number.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And, and, and, and, in a, in a time perhaps when you've got, you
know, I don't know, you know, you hit two events at on a weekend perhaps, Mr. Chairman.
You know that impact on what that leach field can hold and where it goes, I've got concerns.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Nishiki. Mr. Hirano, since, following up on the letter that's
in our binder, have you or Ms. McBride had any opportunity to network with the Department of
Health with regards to that? And I guess that the question is, if I'm correct, from Mr. Nishiki,
has there been any written correspondence or any conversations with the Department of Heath,
since this letter?
MR. HIRANO: No. No, sir. No, Vice-Chair Molina, there hasn't been.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Chairman?
MR. HIRANO: There hasn't been any problem with the septic field or with the system.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: So in spite of the letter of concern from the Department of Health, there was
no attempt either from yourselves or the Department of Health to at least talk about the
concerns?
MR. HIRANO: No. We responded in the letter and that was it. We didn't follow up on that.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Members, other questions for the applicant? Mr. Medeiros followed
by Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. And thank you for being here you guys.
This area is currently zoned Multi-Family Zoning Apartment A-2, which would indicate a
residential area. Does this allow for commercial business activity?
MR. HIRANO: No. That is why we're going for the conditional permit.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Because many of the letters we find in our binders, that oppose
this application, is because of the commercialized activity and the increase in traffic, cars,
people, and so forth. And this other question I have may be for the Department; but in reading
some of the documents--and some are, you know, quite aged because of how long this has
taken--it mentioned a two-story main dwelling. Does that still exist on the property?
MR. HIRANO: No, that dwelling had collapsed. It was very much in disrepair.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MR. HIRANO: The, as I understand from the architect, when they were going in for the permitting,
the, that dwelling did collapse and it was demolished, taken away.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, thank you for, for that. Now, at that dwelling, was there,
was it at that dwelling that the cesspool existed? Because it shows a cesspool on, on, one of the
drawings.
MR. HIRANO: Yes, I'm not, the, I believe the, well I know that the existing dwelling has the
wastewater treatment system.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. . . .(inaudible). . .
MR. HIRANO: I'm not aware of what kind of treatment that the dwelling had that was demolished, or
that fell down.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Because the document says that the cesspool would be
closed and no longer in use once the septic tank system was constructed, but you're not sure if
that cesspool no longer exists?
MR. HIRANO: I know that the cesspool is not in use. And I'm not sure how that was closed up,
whether it was filled or not, but...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So it's not in use anymore?
MR. HIRANO: It's not in use.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: All right. Do the property owners live on the property?
MR. HIRANO: No, they don't.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No, they don't.
MR. HIRANO: The, the dwelling isn't used in, only when Don and Joy Nelson are here. But they,
they spend, sometimes, they spend time there; but normally it's, it's not lived in, and that's why
they have the caretaker on site.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Are you familiar with the tax court category that that property is
in, . . .(inaudible). . . property?
MR. HIRANO: It's taxed and assessed as Apartment.
- 26 -

LAND USE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui

July 15, 2009

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Apartment? Okay. And it is in the special management area?
MR. HIRANO: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So was the SMA assessment submitted and approved?
MR. HIRANO: This, the SMA assessment was not submitted for this particular dwelling. It, it was, in
that sometimes, we do SMA assessments for conditional permits; but normally special
management area use permits are for developments. This, there was no development related to
this particular application. It, it was to use an existing dwelling for the wedding services.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And, I, I think I can follow that question up with the
Department after we're done with you. It does say that the, there'll be about ten weddings per
month, and under ten private party functions per year. Is that part of the conditions? Or is that
what the owner is saying they project it to be?
MR. HIRANO: Well no w it is. It's part of the additional conditions that the Department had
submitted today as part of the conditions where the uses will be limited in numbers, to 11
combined functions. The number in the application was a projection of what the applicant
expected in terms of the frequency of events. And those special functions are for--many times,
Don and Joy Nelson provide the facility for nonprofit organizations or private individuals, local
families, who need and want to use the premises for services or functions for the family; and
that's happened.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. There, there's a concern in many of the letters opposing
this application about the increased traffic; and many of the documents--and I don't know if
I'm reading it or understanding it correctly--talks about onsite parking.
MR. HIRANO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And it says minimum of 20 cars.
MR. HIRANO: It should be "maximum of 20".
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah, yeah. That's what I thought.
MR. HIRANO: Maximum of 20.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, and all the documents say that.
MR. HIRANO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So, so it's a maximum of 20 cars.
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MR. HIRANO: Cars on the property.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And I see where the plan is to bring guests by busses.
MR. HIRANO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So 20 cars, or 20 parking stalls, you feel is efficient,
adequate, when you're talking about guests that may drive there? You're talking about
vendors, contractors, and caterers driving there to perform their service. Do you think that the
onsite parking will accommodate all of that for a wedding?
MR. HIRANO: I understand, for clarification, from the Planning Department's submittal was that the
20, maximum 20, was for guests.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Only guests?
MR. HIRANO: Only guests. But there is, and there are, there is space for additional parking on the
property. It's 1.8 acres.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So that's like grass areas?
MR. HIRANO: Grass areas, that's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So, there won't be any overflow of parking whether it's
guests or vendors that would overflow into on-street parking, or down the street to our County
park?
MR. HIRANO: No. Councilmember Medeiros, the parking and that is part of what the applicant and
the permit holder will ensure is that all parking for every event will be on site. That there will
be no parking allowed on Hauoli Street. And during the planning of the event, if it is a larger
event, and there are more cars, then the applicant, or the function, the couple who are hosting
the wedding, they would have to arrange to have their guests shuttled in off-site.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. I'm gonna ask, Mr. Chairman, I'm gonna ask my last
questions so somebody else can ask more questions. There was a concern in the letters
apposing the application about amplified music.
MR. HIRANO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And, your application describes that outdoors it'd be acoustic -MR. HIRANO: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --and indoors it will be amplified.
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MR. HIRANO: That is correct. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Is this building air-conditioned, where the doors and
windows are closed completely?
MR. HIRANO: The doors are always closed during the events.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Is it air-conditioned, where the windows would be sealed?
MR. HIRANO: No, it isn't air-conditioned.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So one letter said that they live in a property next door -MR. HIRANO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --and their property does not allow amplified music. And so now
they're saying that they'd be subjected to listen to amplified music if that's allowed. And even
if you put amplified music indoors, depending on the type of music and your musical group,
some of it can be amplified very loud, whether it's indoors or not. So that, you know, is a real
concern for me that people have made that comment about the amplified music, and I think we
should really look at that. But I'm gonna end there, Mr. Chairman. Thank you for this
opportunity.
MR. HIRANO: Vice-Chair Molina, may I just respond to Councilmember Medeiros'
VICE-CHAIR: All right, briefly.
MR. HIRANO: --comments about the music? When this application was being processed, I, the
meeting, a meeting was held with Don and Joy Nelson and the Maalaea Community
Association. Part of that discussion led to this very fact about music. And at that point, the
Nelsons had agreed to make sure that all music outdoors were amp, were acoustical music; that
they would arrange the music so that it would be as far as possible from the Maalaea Banyan
side of the property; and that, as well, the interior room, where the amplified music is played,
the speakers were to be arranged so that they weren't directed outside or along the doors but
arranged more across the room and across on the other side. So they were trying to
accommodate those very comments by the placement of the speakers.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mr. Chair?
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I just wanna follow up on that.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Yeah, you know, Mr. Medeiros, I could ask you wait. I know Member
Johnson's been waiting patiently and Mr. Pontanilla, so I'd like to proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. With his response, you know, I, I wanted to ask?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: It's all right. That's fine with me, Mr. Chairman.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay very briefly cause I'd like to keep the...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. And thank you, Member Johnson.
You would think it would be opposite--that you would have acoustic music indoors because
you don't have to amplify it indoors and amplified music would be outside. So I can't
understand how a small space as this building is, that you would want amplified music indoors.
MR. HIRANO: The neighbors were concerned about amplified music outdoors, and I think -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right
MR. HIRANO: --the music carries, you know, outdoors, the amplified music, so the acoustical music
was perceived to be quieter.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No, I agree with the outdoors. I'm talking about the indoors.
Why would you want amplified music in such a small space?
MR. HIRANO: Oh. Well they...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And it's for, you know...
MR. HIRANO: Well that...
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Pardon me. I'm sorry; but I'm gonna have to stop to this. We can, you
know, hammer this thing at a later point.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Member Johnson, thank you for waiting.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, and my suggestion would be just only that we can permit only
acoustic music. If that's, you know, the direction we wanna go. My questions have to do with,
and I believe Member Medeiros talked about the applicant does not live on site, so there is a
caretaker?
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MR. HIRANO: There is a caretaker who lives on site. There is a small cottage, at the entrance of the
driveway. The permit holder, Geralee McBride, is on site and is overseeing every function
from the start to the finish.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So even though there's no one other than the caretaker
living on site, somebody is there to monitor everything that's going on and man the property?
MR. HIRANO: During the weddings, during the events, yes. Whenever the property will be used,
Geralee McBride will be on site.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, and with regard to an earlier issue with regard to the kitchen,
even though the event is catered, are any of the dishes or anything rinsed off prior to taking
them back to the, I guess the caterer?
MS. McBRIDE: The dishes are rinsed, but then they're washed in the commercial kitchen, at Maalaea
Grill.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay and with regard to any food waste, how is that handled?
MS. McBRIDE: It's transported off site.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. With regard to this comment of Department of Health, that
this is located in a critical wastewater disposal area, have you received any further comments
since the installation of your septic system with regard to the concerns about this being in a
critical wastewater disposal area?
MR. HIRANO: No, we had, no, the applicant, has not, Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. 'Cause I know we have similar issues in West Maui as well.
So, I, I'd be in, very interested in getting some comment because, as Member Nishiki queried,
we really do have a lot of these issues arising in near shore areas where they have close
proximity and particularly with the leach field. When was the septic system that is now in
existence installed?
MR. HIRANO: I'm not sure whether it's 2006, 2007, from that time.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, and have any activities taken place on that property since
that system was installed?
MR. HIRANO: Yes. As the Planning Department had mentioned, when the conditional permit was
applied for, and there was a period of winding down because there were reservations for
weddings, so those were allowed to occur. The Nelsons also have allowed individuals or
nonprofit groups, to use the property for special occasions. There was no fee attached to it. It
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was just out of the kindness and generosity of their heart to, to allow that to happen. So there
have been some functions like that that have occurred.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, and with regard to the number of attendees, at these types of
events, do you have any idea of what the maximum number of individuals would have been?
MR. HIRANO: I'll ask Geralee.
MS. McBRIDE: It would not have been more than 80, which is what the Maalaea Association had
asked us years ago when we put up the conditionals.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, and, and were there any problems with the operation of the
system that you had installed with regard to capacity?
MR. HIRANO: No. There were no, no problems with that.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And no overflow?
MR. HIRANO: No overflow. No.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, and do you--the last question is--do you have a letter of
support from the Maalaea Community Association and the individuals that were originally
involved that supports this application with these new conditions that have been suggested by
the Planning Department?
MR. HIRANO: No, we don't. We do have letters of support from individuals, and one, I don't know
if it is in your packet, but Lynn Britney was the past President of the Maalaea Association, and
she provided a letter of support as an individual to support the application.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, but you haven't specifically...
MR. HIRANO: But not from the Association.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And you have not specifically met with them, with these
new suggested conditions put in to, I, I guess address the mitigation for the concerns that had
been originally raised?
MR. HIRANO: No, but those--not the specific ones that were tabled today--but the hours of operation;
the limiting of the numbers; and the no parking on the Hauoli Street; were discussed with the
Maalaea Association.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, and when was the last meeting that you had?
MR. HIRANO: That was probably around 2006.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. If, if there's been any subsequent, you know,
correspondence, I, I, think, just to be prudent, and I agree with Member Nishiki, when, because
there has been a length of time that's elapsed -MR. HIRANO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --some of these people may have moved away, you know, other
issues 'cause I know I haven't gotten any recent complaints about Haycraft Park. That doesn't
mean there aren't problems, but I just, I would respectfully ask that you meet with the people,
the Association, send out just some kind of notification that at least if they still have remaining
concerns that can be addressed through conditions, and then discuss with them what the
proposed conditions are imposed by the Planning Commission. I'd like to see some formal
indication of that -MR. HIRANO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --if that, whether in a meeting, but certainly coming back and
writing to us.
MR. HIRANO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Johnson. Just a quick follow-up to Mr. Hirano. Those
meetings you had with representatives from the Association, I presume they took minutes of
those meetings, and if there were minutes taken, could that be provided to the Committee?
MR. HIRANO: Yes. I didn't take minutes of those meetings. I diarized them in our sort of, our own
internal system as when those meetings took place, but I didn't provide minutes for those.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, all right. Mr. Pontanilla, we'll recognize you for your line of
questioning; and after that, Members, we will take a short recess. Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman. Mine is really quick. Mich, in an A-2
zoned area, would you know how many units you can put up?
MR. HIRANO: I think they felt that they'd develop 40 units total.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Forty units? Okay, thank you.
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VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Members, we're going to take a recess. We
shall reconvene at 3:15. Land Use Committee meeting for July 15, 2009 is now in recess.
. . .(gavel). . .
RECESS: 3:06 p.m.
RECONVENE: 3:23 p.m.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: ... (gavel). . . Land Use Committee meeting for July 15, 2009 is back, now
back in session. Members, we last left off on the line of questioning for the applicants
regarding Land Use Item 27. Members, at this point, there have been some concerns expressed
with regards to the matter, and I'd like to recognize Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Mr. Chair. And you know, because of the concerns raised, and
also some information, I think, that is really critical to us making a proper decision, I would just
very--you know, because we have another applicant also waiting--I would just very respectfully
ask that the, that we defer this item; but then any questions that we have that have not been
actually asked today, I'd ask the Members to put them in writing. Because I have a few more
things too. I have to go back and look at my notes. But that would be my request because if
we're gonna loose quorum at 4:30, I, I just, I think it's only fair to just try and defer this and
then that way maybe the Department can get us back some answers too. That's just my
suggestion.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you very much, Member Johnson. All right, Members. The
Chair has heard from one individual with regards to how we should proceed with this particular
issue. I do wanna commend the applicant for making an effort to address some of the issues, or
most of the issues that have been expressed by the Maalaea Community. However, in light of
the fact that there's been other concerns expressed, you know, the Chair at this point is, wants
to just get some feedback from you, Members, with regards to considering action on this
particular item for today. We've heard from Member Johnson. Mr. Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo Mr. Chairman, I, I think Member Johnson brings up a
good point; but, I, I, would leave it to the area representative, first, to express, you know, his
thoughts on this.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Before I go to Mr. Nishiki, I'd like to ask Member Kaho'ohalahala,
any comments with regards to how we proceed towards the rest of this afternoon on this
particular item?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah, Chair. I think I would be in support of Member
Johnson's request, only because I, I, too would like to ask questions having to do with some of
the letters that have been written and are part of the file, concerning many, many details; and
part of it is asking the Department again on how some of those were resolved, if at all, and we
haven't even gotten to that, so.
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VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. So noted, Mr. Kaho'ohalahala. And I'd like to thank Member
Johnson for reminding the Chair that we are going to lose quorum at 4:30 this afternoon, and
we do have one more applicant waiting in the wings. So, Mr. Nishiki, as the area
representative, brief comments as to what we do for the rest of the afternoon?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No. No, mine will be really short. I think the question that really
needs to be answered is--how deep is this water table? You know, as I mentioned,
Mr. Chairman, not a problem when it's up in Kula or somewhere like this. When it's close to
the ocean, you've got a system in there. How deep is it from the ocean level? And the reason
why I bring this up is because once this water percolates to the leach field, it creates, basically,
problems in nearby shore water. And what happens is that the nitrates and the phosphorus,
which can, can, contaminate aquifers and Maalaea Bay . . .(Change Tape, Start 2B at
3:27 pin.). . don't have to show proof. You know, we call, we talk local, "eh show proofl"
We don't have to show proof. We have had scientists go down there, and shown to us the
degradation. That's the reason again for Mazie's money to Maui County. To further injure this
sensitive area--and why I say this is because from Maalaea, the waters go down to Kihei; it
goes down to Wailea; it goes down to Makena. And you and I know already there's been a suit
filed. And, and the people in Wailea are concerned about what's happening to our ocean
environment, and justly so. You know what. If tourism is our biggest moneymaker, and we
find that the ocean is contaminated, there it goes. So, a good decision, and as I've said, if we
want to get more questions asked so that we can make a good decision, I would support the
referral [sicJ--deferral!
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Nishiki. Mr. Pontanilla, any final comments?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. I'll support the deferral. What I want though, is
the, what Mr. Hirano had, Mich Hirano had said that he took some notes in regards to the
community meeting. That would be handy in regards to some of the things that they discussed,
and some, the measure that they took to correct it. That's all I had. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla, and the Chair will wrap up this item with a few
comments of his own. Again, I wanna thank the applicant. I think they've made progress since
the application was first presented a number of years ago. They've met with the community,
with regards to the changing the cesspool system to a septic system. They took the initiative to
look at the, I guess respond to that letter by going towards a septic system. It's unfortunate
there was a, a, no written response from the State on it. I guess, and—I don't know for
whatever reasons why there was no written response from the State or a follow-up letter with
regards to the applicant converting from a cesspool to septic system, you know. I guess only
the applicant can say at a future point. But, I do wanna commend them, and thank them for
making the efforts to address some of the concerns from the Committee. But in light of the, the
other concerns expressed by the Committee, I believe it's been already determined at this point,
deferral would be the appropriate thing to do. And I would hope that Committee Chair Baisa
would, once all of the questions have been responded to, she can take this matter up in the near
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future. So, Members, as ordered by the Committee, Land Use Item 27 shall be deferred with.
Are there any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (JJ, SK, BM, WN, JP, MM)
ACTION: DEFER.

VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you very much, Members. All right Land Use Item 27 is
deferred. Members, we're gonna go on now to Land Use Item 20.
LU-20

CHANGE IN ZONING FOR EMMANUEL LUTHERAN CHURCH AND
SCHOOLS OF MAUI (WAILUKU) (C.c. No. 09-116)

VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Land Use Item 20 relates to the request from the Emmanuel Lutheran
Church. A situation has arisen, Members, and it was just pointed out to the Chair, moments
ago, a matter related to a Sunshine Law issue. And I would like to ask, Staff and Corporation
Counsel to comment on this matter that has been presented to the Chair. And it's quite, has the
Chair quite concerned. But anyway, who would like to take the, Ms. Nakata would you like to
share with the staff, what has been discovered with regards to this matter?
MS. NAKATA: Yes, Mr. Chair. Staff would note that the agenda posted today for, with respect to the
second item for Emmanuel Lutheran Church does contain an incorrect street address, of 255 East
Waiko Road. Staff apologizes for the error. It was only just noticed shortly before the meeting
commenced. In referring to one of the maps that was contained in the Department's report, it
became apparent that the property is not situated on East Waiko Road. Staff would note that the
TMK number listed on the agenda is correct. The street address was obtained from both the
Department's report as well as the completed application form submitted for this matter; but the
property is not on East Waiko Road.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: So what is the official address of the property that should have been noticed
on the agenda? Is it, so it's not 255 East? What would be the street number I guess?
MS. NAKATA: Staff would need to defer to the applicant's consultants. My understanding from the
consultant is that there is no street address, but that the property borders both Waiale as well as
Honoapiilani Highway.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Corporation Counsel, any additional comments? Mr. Giroux?
MR. GIROUX: Thank you, Chair. I have dealt with this issue in the past, dealing with the Planning
Commission where either a TMK or, or a, or a address is equivocal on the agenda or on the
notice. My discussions with OIP have always been on the side of the, under, under their
analysis, they wanna look, not just if there's an error, but is that error such that the public would
be, I guess. Would there be prejudices to members of the public that they would actually not go
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to the meeting or that they would be misled into believing that it's a different project. And so,
in, in that case, I, I believe it probably, there should be discussion amongst the Members on
how comfortable they are in proceeding. I have talked to the Staff Planner, and looked at the
notices; and all of the notices have been given along with a map. The map is accurate. The
TMK is accurate, but the address is not. As far as right now, it's hard to tell how misleading
that would be. So I, it really is a gray area of the law. I guess only time would flush it out for
us; but if Members feel that, that error would be misleading to the public, I would advise that
you, you defer it. However, if you see it as a minor typo, and the other information that went
along with this posting would accurately give the public a chance to comment, or come to this
meeting, then I would advise to proceed.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Giroux. So just recapping what's been said, the
TMK is correct. The street address is incorrect. Mr. Dack from the Department has noticed
surrounding properties about this application.
MR. DACK: Yes, and as indicated by Corporation Counsel, all the mapping has been correct.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, and, Mr. Giroux, ultimately, it's a policy. It's a decision of the body.
We can hear all the opinions from, you know, the Department, or Corporation Counsel, or our
Staff Attorneys; but ultimately, it's our decision as a body whether to proceed with this matter.
Am I correct?
MR. GIROUX: Yes, it is. It's a, it's a, has to deal with your comfort level as far as all the facts you
have before you.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, thank you, Mr. Giroux. Well, Members, the Chair will offer his
comments before I ask you for yours. The Chair is comfortable with moving because we do
have other areas of the agendized item that is correct. The public will have two additional
opportunities to comment on the request. If this matter does move out of Committee today,
there will be an opportunity at first reading of the Counsel. If it is deemed or expressed by
members of the public that maybe there was a, a Sun, a perceived Sunshine Law violation, this
matter could easily be sent back to Committee on that basis alone. You know, so, Members, I,
I, I, I don't foresee anything too extraneous in terms of at least just having the PowerPoint
presentation, and like any item, this Committee can make a decision. We can decide to make a
decision or not make a decision. But at the very least, Members, I have no problems with at
least having a presentation done. Some basic question and answers, with regards to the matter
and if the Members, you deem it, you're ready, you feel comfortable with making a decision,
then so be it. So, those are just my thoughts, Members. I'll just go down the line and get
feedback from you. Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman. I, I can move on this, taking action
today. You know, looking at the documentation that was sent to us from the Planning
Department on April the 9 th , 2009. And basically what we have agendized except for the
address itself, everything, everything is the same. So, this is what the Planning Commission
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Commissioners had reviewed and recommended to this Council, so I have no problems moving
forward, in taking action today in regards to Land Use 20.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. And thank you for making that point so that the
public had an opportunity as well at the Planning Commission level to give comment on this as
well too. Thank you. Mr. Nishiki, any comments with regards to Land Use Item 20?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: What the Corporation Counsel said today was it's, again, up to the
Council. I would think, that if you, if we send something to OIP, they would be very succinct
in saying, you know, if it's a address given, can we continue and move on to have any kind of
discussion on, on this zoning request. But to hear from Corporation Counsel saying that it is up
to us, again, bothers me. I mean, was the question asked of OIP, succinct enough to say, hey,
you know we posted something on an agenda, the address was not correct, can we continue and
have open discussion? So Corporation Counsel, when you asked for an OIP opinion, are you
specific when you asked that question? What was the question asked, that...
MR. GIROUX: Chair?
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Giroux.
MR. GIROUX: Mr. Nishiki, the, the response was not that I asked OIP about this issue. The response
was is that I've been in this situation many times before with the Planning Commission, where
there's errors on the agenda. In my discussions with them, regarding these types of errors, the
response is usually that, is it misleading to the public, not that there was an error. So it, it, they
do not have all the facts before them. They, they would have to look. They would have to do
the same analysis that you're going to do--a totality of the circumstances. Looking at all of the
information that you have, do you feel that the public has been prejudiced? Do they, did they
not get notice? Did they not get a chance to respond, or come to your meeting, or were they
mislead such that they missed that opportunity. So, as, as, your Attorney, I have to tell you
that's the analysis. But the facts as they play out, these types of things, I mean I, I, think this
body is very familiar with the type of litigation that comes out of the Sunshine Law. You, you
can get an opinion from Corp. Counsel; you can get an OIP opinion; you can get a Circuit
Court opinion; you can get a Supreme Court opinion, on and on and on, about something that in
the end, it really comes down to--what is the intent of the Sunshine Law? The people are
supposed to be given an opportunity to make comment on government business. So, if that
opportunity you feel has been given, then you can feel comfortable proceeding. If you feel that
it hasn't, then the conservative approach would be to re-notice.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chairman, is this project site, when I look at the map, near any
population area, any big subdivision? It looks like it's -VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: I believe it's close to Spencer.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --near the Spencer Subdivision.
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VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Yeah, Spencer Subdivision. Then further down the road, you have the, I
guess, the, was it Waiolani? Across from the jail, that area, and then...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Kehalani.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Kehalani. Yeah, I'm sorry. I got the name mixed up.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: But this is on Honoapiilani Highway.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Uh-huh. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay, thank you. I really have no concern. I'm just not happy with
the legal opinion.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, thank you, Mr. Nishiki. Mr. Medeiros, any comments?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Yeah I'd like to move forward on this
too. But, I, I, do raise a concern--and again its for Corp. Counsel--that this may bring in an
opportunity for anyone that opposes this application, now that it's announced, to take action to
claim a Sunshine Law violation. So if that is brought up, and that stalls this, where do we go
then, Corp. Counsel? Do we start all over again?
MR. GIROUX: That, that's the, yeah, that's, that's the risk, as far as what you want to do. If you
wanna discuss this more in, in executive session, that's fine too. But I think the cat's out of the
bag.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
MR. GIROUX: You know, so as far as what you want to do at this point, I think you have to look at
how comfortable are you proceeding; and if you wanna do the conservative approach and defer
it, that's fine too.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mr. Chairman?
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah, that would be my concern. That if we should proceed
forward--which I'd like to see for this project--but we end up being blocked by some kind of
legal claim, then it forces the applicant to start all over again, is what I'm hearing from Corp.
Counsel. Is that correct, Corp. Counsel? Or do we just start where we didn't agendize it
accurately?
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MR. GIROUX: Right, at, in a, in a complaint, it would go up the Circuit Court, probably with a, you
know, an injunction, and then, as far as the action taken. The remedy would be to, you know,
if, if there, if it is seen to be a willful violation, then the remedy would be to re-notice it and
then have another Committee hearing.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay--and I just raised that for our Members to consider--because
I'd like to see this application go forward; and yet, I wouldn't want to see it get stopped in this
process by some kind of legal action. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Medeiros. You raised some valid points as well to consider.
Mr. Kaho'ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Chair. My comments would be the same
with Mr., Member Medeiros, in that it's not so much what we think is appropriate, it's what the
perception of this process is. And that's where we are struck by the realities of Sunshine; and
that, like the Attorney said, we already let the cat out of the bag. So, so I think it's something
that perhaps the applicant themselves would want to consider at this moment in time, rather
than have this discussion go on into a closed session. That the most proper thing to do is notice
it properly so that there is no, no complaints from anyone whatsoever about our processes, so
that would be my concern.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, thank you, Mr. Kaho'ohalahala. Ms. Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, and, and I think this is reminiscent of Bill 84. It's reminiscent
of other land use issues where there have been challenges, and it's not us. It's members of the
public. And I know that issue has been raised about Sunshine. I would really like to hear from
the applicant though. If they don't foresee any difficulties, or if they feel that, "look, we, we, at
least wanna make the PowerPoint presentation"; and if we take no action on it, I don't see a
problem with that. But, I would also, you know, think that they want to ensure that there are no
glitches somewhere down the road, that someone who they, maybe not even, have not even yet
identified, could challenge them in a court of law. So but, you know, it, it's, it's up to the body;
but I basically think that, you know. If the applicant says no, they'd rather do everything next
time, I am, I'm totally open. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Johnson. And just for the body's information,
I've asked Staff to place a call to the Office of Information Practices and they're currently on
another line. So, at some point, and as we all know, OIP is slow to respond. So, anyway, I'm
just, as an FYI for you, Members. Mr. Kaho'ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah, Chair. I just wanna ask, perhaps, Corporation
Counsel, if we went ahead to at least allow the presentation, with no action by the Committee,
then, would we be in violation?
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Giroux?
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MR. GIROUX: I'm not gonna speak on the, on the final issue of, of violation. The remedy would--if
you don't take action, there's nothing to remedy. So, you, you would, you know, re-notice it.
There would be another hearing, and then you'd proceed from there.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, all right. Okay, Mr. Medeiros, followed by Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Just very quickly. So, so, if there is a legal challenge, would this,
Mr. Giroux, go back to OIP for a written opinion or decision? And if it does, we know how
long that takes. We haven't gotten a written opinion on ours, and I've been here three years,
you know. So, what, what would be the response to that?
MR. GIROUX: Yeah. I, I think you have several options at this juncture. You can defer it right now.
That would avoid any, any legal worries.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
MR. GIROUX: You could listen to it. You know, at least, see what the project is. The public would
be able to review it. If, you know, somebody wanted to file a suit, I guess they could. That's
the risk we have every meeting.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
MR. GIROUX: And, the other one, you can defer it to go and get an, an opinion from OIP; but by that
time, we would have re-noticed it, anyway. Then we would just proceed with the hearing.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, Mr. Chairman. Yeah, I, I, I'd like to see the presentation if
it doesn't hurt or increase any more legal challenge.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: At least to see the project, and, and like Mr. Giroux said, it'll give
the public a chance to see what the project's about.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So, thank you.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Medeiros. And this is a follow-up to your line of
questioning to the Corporation Counsel. In addition, you know, by at least having the
discussion with no action taken, then what, again, what is there to challenge? In addition, this
meeting is filmed, so the public has an opportunity to view it on Akaku, and as well as they can
look at the minutes. So, again, in the Chair's opinion, I think there is no harm in at least
discussing it. And, I know some of you have maybe a level of discomfort with actually making
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a decision, the Chair understands that as well. Mr. Nishiki, they, before we recognize the
applicant?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I, you know, not to speak for the church. You know, and Members
have said "well let's hear from the church". This is government here. Church is merely the
applicant. I think, you know, in, in listening to this, if I were a member outside or, or, or, or of
the church, especially the church now. Here's a church. They would not want to take any
chance of any kind of challenge. Seriously, you know, what is another week setback? I don't
think there's anything. This, to me, is the cleaner way to do it, so we have, when we leave
today, we don't have to worry about it. Why, why do we want to put ourselves in this
circumstance? Anytime we have a discussion on this, we're breaking the law if the, if, if there
is, if it goes to court. Then, why would the church wanna go and have to be challenged there,
and pay extra money to, to then defend themselves? Also, our attorneys would have to go and
work with this case. To me, defer this item. Come back the next day, I think, you know is the
right way to proceed.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you for your comments, Mr. Nishiki. Mr. Hart?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Chairman?
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Mr. Hart, if we're gonna defer this thing, then I, I would rather
have the presentation done at that time, at the new date, because we do have two Members that
are not here, or three Members. So, you know, with all of the nine Members at this meeting,
you know, that one presentation would suffice.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you. That is a good point, too. We're operating on just two-thirds of
the Committee today. Three Members, if we were to at least have the presentation, three would
not be here to view it, although there are hard copies presented. Mr. Hart?
MR. HART: First of all, Mr. Chair, my name is Chris Hart, Chris Hart & Partners, and we handled the
application, and we have gone through the State Land Use Commission process as well as the
Maui County Planning Commission... (NOTE: Sound system made a loud humming noise.)
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VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Recess. . .(gavel). . .
RECESS:

3:49 p.m.

RECONVENE: 3:50 p.m.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: .. . (gavel). . . Land Use Committee meeting for July 15, 2009 is-now back
in session. Thank you for that recess, Members. We're trying to adjust to our technical issues
here. So I presume the mike is now back in session, and we last left with Mr. Hart giving
comment on Land Use Item 20. Mr. Hart, please continue.
MR. HART: Okay. In the context of the addresse, I have to apologize; but the same address (the
Waiko Road address) was used, and I believe that it was picked up in the context of the seller of
the property being Wailuku Agribusiness. That was the address that was basically transmitted
or, or, to us, in the context of the property. And so, I apologize for that. There is no address.
The actual access is gonna be from Waiale Road, but it is located between Honoapiilani
Highway and Waiale Road. In the context of issues that were discussed, in terms of the
Sunshine Law, I concur with Mr. Nishiki and some of the other Council members regarding the
need to be conservative. And we have consulted with the Attorney, Tom Leuteneker, Thomas
Leuteneker--who is with Carlsmith Ball, and he is a Member of Emmanuel Lutheran
Church--and basically, the decision is that we would rather be conservative in our approach
and, and notice it correctly. And again, I have to apologize; but I think when we received
information regarding the piece of property, that 2550 Waiko Road address was picked up, and
it was incorrectly picked up as being associated with the parcel. It was actually the location of
Wailuku Agribusiness offices.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. So for the record, the property under consideration has no street
address. It's just along Waiko.
MR. HART: It has no street address at this time. The only address would be the tax map key location
in the map.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Hart. Well, Members, you've heard from the
applicant. Therefore, the Chair will play it conservative. And that way I guess, we can make
things cleaner. In the event, in the unlikelihood--well there is the possibility I should say, of a
potential challenge in the future, should we have taken matters into our own hands today and
proceeded with this. So, with that said, Members, I will call for a deferral on the matter. Any
objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (JJ, SK, BM, WN, JP, MM)
ACTION: DEFER.
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VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Seeing no objections, thank you very much, Members, and my
apologies as well to the folks who came out from Emmanuel Lutheran to share their thoughts
on the process. And needless to say, we will ask the Land Use Chair, Ms. Baisa, to hopefully, if
possible, to expedite getting a hearing in the near future for you so we can have this matter
addressed. Members, any announcements? Okay. Seeing none, the Chair would like to thank
all of you for your participation here today although we didn't quite have a full crew today, the
rest of you were here to participate in discussions. The Chair would like to thank Staff as well
as the Administration and Corporation Counsel's Office for their participation. It is seven
minutes to the hour of four o'clock, July 15, 2009. This Land Use Committee meeting is now
adjourned. . . . (gavel). . .
ADJOURN: 3:54 p.m.
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